
MINUTES – SPECIAL MEETING – September 23, 2020 

The Board of Aldermen of the Town of Gibsonville met at 10:00am for a special meeting in the Town Hall. The 

meeting was called to order by Mayor Protem Mark Shepherd. Mayor Williams as well as Alderpersons Owen, 

O’Toole, Pleasants, and Maizland were present. Ben Baxley, Town Manager, Gina Griffeth, Town Clerk, James 

Todd, Fire Chief, Rob Elliot, Public Works Director, Brandon Parker, Town Planner, and Josh Johnson and 

Brent Mills of Alley, Williams, Carmen, and King were present. Mr. Wagoner of the Wagoner Farm property 

was present from the public.  

The special meeting was held for the purpose of discussing the Town of Gibsonville water distribution system 

and sewer collection system master plan and to set project priorities from the plan. 

Town of Gibsonville Water and Sewer Master Plan 

Josh Johnson of Alley, Williams, Carmen, and King presented a PowerPoint and discussed the Town of 

Gibsonville Water and Sewer Master Plan for 2020-2040. The plan is a preliminary final copy outside of any 

suggestions made by the board.  

Josh stated that the town’s comprehensive land use plan is approximately 20 years old and that Brandon Parker, 

Town Planner, has requested in the budget to have it updated.  

Growth 

Growth in Gibsonville has been substantial over the past 20 years and does not appear to be slowing anytime 

soon. The population could potentially double in the next 20 years. And while there will hopefully be some 

commercial and industrial growth, much of it will be residential. 

Anticipated areas of growth are: 

North – the areas of Piedmont Avenue and the County Farm 

East – the areas of Manning Crossing and the Preserve at Stone Ridge 

West – the areas of 61 North, the Edinborough property, a portion of County Farm, and Friedens Church 

South – the areas of Dew Sharpe, the Owen property, and Bethel Church area 

There are some infill areas available, such as the Owen property, but most are in outlying areas. 

Existing Water System 

The existing water system is approximately 100 years old. While Gibsonville once used a series of wells to 

obtain water, the town now purchases all of its water from the City of Burlington. The water is supplied from 

the Joe C. Davidson water tank. The tank sets the elevation, and therefore water pressure, for domestic water in 

Gibsonville. The water passes through a system of meters, all of which are located in the southern portion of 

town.  

The primary pipe in Gibsonville is 6” unlined cast iron which is notorious for build-up and degradation. New 

town regulations require 8” pipe.  

Existing Sewer System 

Up until the mid to late 1970s, the Town of Gibsonville operated its own wastewater treatment plant(s). At 

present, all Gibsonville wastewater is treated by the City of Burlington. Water flowing through the Travis Creek 

pump station goes to Burlington’s east plant. Water in the south part of town goes through the Back Creek and 

to Burlington’s south plant in Swepsonville.  

The town’s primary issue with wastewater is infiltration and inflow by storm water. The problem is relative to 

rainfall received. Gibsonville has been very aggressive in tackling infiltration and inflow.  

Water System Growth 

Hazen and Sawyer have performed water modeling for the Town of Gibsonville. Fire flow minimums for 

residential development are 1,000 gallons/minute while maintaining 20psi at the residence for a minimum of 2 

hours. Industrial minimums jump to 2,000 gallons/minute. The current water tanks located at Joyner Street and 

the Gibsonville Community Center do not meet these minimums.  

Project #1 – Hwy 61/US 70 – The project design is 99% complete. It would be insufficient to connect to 

Whitsett’s current 6” line. Therefore, a connection will be made to Burlington’s 24” line on US 70.  

Project #2 – Water to the northwest area of town – a 12” line will be run from Apple Street up Hwy 61 to the 

Wagoner property.  



Project #3 – New water tank and oversized lines – Water modeling shows that the new tank would be best 

placed in the same area as the existing Joyner tank. Installing a new tank would allow the town to get rid of 

existing tanks, both of which are well beyond their life span already. The new tank and oversized lines would 

improve fire flow in the existing system and provide sufficient fire flow for the County Farm area. The one 

negative is that domestic pressure at some high points in town would be 43psi. This number is allowable and 

within limits, but not ideal.  

Project #4 – To create a high pressure zone to northwest developments –  

Project #5 – Northeast Gibsonville/Manning area – A discussion between Gibsonville and Elon about the line of 

agreement will determine who runs the water line up Gibsonville-Ossipee Road. The line should be 12” to allow 

future growth to the north.  

Project #6 – Projects to the South – All projects will be development driven. The policy recommendation to the 

Town of Gibsonville is to make all future lines 12” to support growth. 

Sewer System Growth 

The primary outfalls, Travis Creek and Little Back Creek, are already in existence. The pump stations are a 

maintenance and fiscal long term commitment, requiring a rebuilt every 15-20 years. 

Project #1 – US 70/Hwy 61 – The main trunk line connects off of Walnut Crossing. The main line consists of a 

16” pipe with smaller 8” pipes to individual neighborhoods. 

Alderman Shepherd asked if this project must be done before anything else can be developed. 

Josh Johnson stated that it would be required before anything on the southwest side of town can be developed. 

Both Project #1 from water and Project #1 from sewer would need to be completed. The water line on both the 

north and south sections of Hwy 61 are necessary to make the system work. 

Project #3 – Travis Creek pump upgrade – Current capacity is 800,000 gallons/day. Capacity is shared with 

Elon, so Gibsonville can use 400,000 gallons/day. The system can easily be upgrade to handle 1,500,000 

gallons/day which would allow Gibsonville to use 750,000 gallons/day. This figure also matches the contracted 

amount with the City of Burlington that can go to the east plant for treatment. 

Alderman O’Toole confirmed that completing an overhaul would provide Gibsonville with 750,000 gallon/day 

capacity. 

Josh Johnson confirmed that it would. He stated that once the pump stations reach the point of needed rehab, it 

only makes sense to upgrade to a higher capacity at the same time. Josh noted that the County Farm area would 

eventually need increased capacity, but it may be 20 or 50 years from now. 

Alderman O’Toole noted that addressing issues now would help provide further possibilities for developers. 

Josh Johnson added that reaching 1,500,000 gallon/day capacity would be a relatively easy upgrade but 

anything above that would require more work. 

Rob Elliot asked if getting to 1,500,000 gallon/day uses the same force main. 

Josh Johnson confirmed that it would use the same force main, but would be reaching the top end. He stated that 

there was never a need for an outfall to serve the County Farm area and the current pump station is insufficient 

for proposed growth. At some point, and extended outfall from Hwy 61 North could require the upgrade of 

approximately 620ft of existing 8” sewer line. A 10” outfall uphill would provide 500,000 gallon/day capacity.  

Cost 

The first six projects, all of which are development driven, would cost approximately $11,000,000. The 

recommendation is that the Town of Gibsonville facilitate projects being completed. An example is that the 

town fund the difference in an 8” vs 12” line being installed during development. 

Mr. Wagoner stated that it was his understanding that the developer of the 172-acre Wagoner property was 

willing to invest $1,800,000 to facilitate the water line. 

Josh Johnson replied that it matches his general understanding with the developer. The problem is that some of 

the development projects are reliant on other projects being completed. Projects #1 and #2 for water will need to 

happen together to provide sufficient flow. Water and sewer development fees are going to be the long term 

plan to make projects pay off. Josh stated that growth projects need to pay for growth projects. 

Policy Recommendations 

The main recommendations are to require annexation for anyone wanting to connect to water or sewer and to 

aggressively pursue the oversizing of lines. Josh stated that the current water/sewer fee maximum allowed by 



the state is $2,700 per residence. Should the state increase that amount, the town should increase it on the fee 

schedule.  

Alderman Owen asked what size water line would be placed along Apple Street. 

Josh Johnson replied that a 12” line would be run from Apple Street/Joyner Street up Hwy 61 North. 

Alderman Shepherd asked how far we were from proceeding with the Hwy 61 project. 

Josh Johnson replied that the plans should be completed next week and the bid documents are being worked on 

now. It will have to be sent in for permitting and can begin bids in three weeks. 

Mayor Williams asked if the board could ask that it go out for bids during an October board meeting. 

Josh Johnson replied that the board could and it could be ready to fund in December. 

Alderman Shepherd stated that the project needs to be underway since it’s the first leg of the entire master plan. 

The board will get with the Town Manager to discuss funding. 

Josh Johnson stated that the next step would be the water line on Apple running out Hwy 61. 

Alderman Shepherd asked if the current water tank would be refurbished or a new one put in. 

Josh Johnson replied that a new 500,000-gallon tank would be installed in the general vicinity of the current one 

on Joyner Street. It would not require a booster pump and the bottom of the tank will sit lower than the existing 

one. 

Alderman Shepherd asked if the town would still need the other existing tank. 

Josh Johnson replied that it would not and the 2 existing tanks would be taken down. They have far out served 

their construction type. 

Mayor Williams asked if the water tanks are ½ full. 

Josh Johnson replied that the tanks are currently 1/3 full. 

Alderman Shepherd asked how many policy changes the town needs to make. 

Josh Johnson replied that the town mostly needed to adjust existing policies. An example was to require 

annexation for both water and sewer. The town’s current policy only requires annexation for sewer. 

Mayor Williams asked when the town’s water/sewer agreement with the City of Burlington ends. 

Josh Johnson replied that the agreement was through 2025 for sewer and 2030 for water. 

Alderman Pleasants stated that the main thing was for the town to stick to its guns on line size recommendations 

and not budge from that. The town needs to look way down the road. 

Josh Johnson stated that an alternative to the town funding the oversizing of lines is to adopt the plan map and 

require developers to install the mapped sizing. However, it is not recommended and could make it cost 

ineffective for developers to build. 

Mayor Williams asked if every new development should have 8” lines. 

Josh Johnson replied that 8” should be the minimum unless considering very short cul-de-sacs. 

Mayor Williams asked if the town would be hooking on to Burlington’s 24” line on US 70 and stated that he 

believes Burlington offered Gibsonville two connects. 

Josh Johnson replied that there are connections at Walnut Crossing and Abbey Glen and he would check with 

Burlington. 

Mayor Williams asked how long design would take for NC 61 North. 

Josh Johnson replied that it would take 3-6 months. It will require a lot of surveying but not as many 

environmental hurdles as the US 70/Hwy 61 area. He stated that the environmental surveying for NC 61 South 

is complete.  

Mr. Wagoner asked about grading and zoning permits. 

Josh Johnson replied that he was speaking of the NC 61 South projects. There are still the tasks of erosion 

control, water and sewer permits, wetland permits, and easements. There is a meeting set up with property 

owners along NC 61 South for easements. Bids can be obtained before easements are worked out if needed. For 

the NC 61 North area, developers have presented a preliminary plan but it has yet to be approved. It does not 

have proper zoning and developers will still need to survey and submit construction drawings. 



Ben Baxley stated that the developer has a desire to be placed on the October 15th planning board agenda for 

rezoning. 

Alderman Pleasants stated that now it was up to the town manager to come up with cash for the projects. 

Ben Baxley replied that decisions will ultimately be in the board’s hands but recommendations will be 

provided. 

Alderman Pleasants stated that projects cannot be put off and Gibsonville cannot stay the same forever. 

Mr. Wagoner stated that there is lots of open land to the north of town and developers will keep building once 

development begins. 

Rob Elliot stated that the projects are very important. There are not currently enough trunk lines and the town 

does struggle with water pressure on the north side. These projects have to be done for the town to keep 

growing. 

Ben Baxley stated that he understands that this is the most regarding water/sewer that the board has ever looked 

at. The town has never done a master plan and has been going project by project. These are critical decisions 

that will significantly impact the next 20 years. The town has also never invested in anything like this. 

Josh Johnson stated that without these projects, you’re just not going to be looking at growth in these areas. 

Mayor Williams stated that the town needs to get things done as quickly as possible. 

Alderman Shepherd, seconded by Alderman Pleasants, made a motion to adjourn. The motion passed 

unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 11:30am. 

 

 

       ___________________________________ 

       Mayor 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Attest 

 

 

 


